
 1 | P a g e  
 

 

             Traffic Commission Minutes               
City of Rock Hill, South Carolina                        April 21, 2021 

  

A public hearing of the Traffic Commission was held Wednesday, April 21, 2021, at 10:30 a.m. 
in City Council Chambers at City Hall, 155 Johnston Street, Rock Hill SC.    
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Kathy Pender, Jimmy Bagley, Captain Roderick Stinson, Ivan 
McCorkle, Steven Varnadore, Terrence Nealy, and Clifton 
Goolsby 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Chris Herrmann, Jason Weil, Arthdale Brown, Leah 
Youngblood, Jason Vance, Tommy Feemster, Rob Walsh, 
and Lieutenant Hugh Harrelson  

 

1. Call to Order 

 Chair Pender called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. 

2. Approval of Minutes of the March 17, 2021, meeting. 

Chair Pender asked if there were any additions, corrections or deletions from the March 
17, 2021 meeting.  Mr. Goolsby then made a motion that the minutes be approved as 
presented; this was seconded by Mr. Nealy and was unanimously approved.    

 

3.  Citizen Issues: Opportunity for citizens to address the Traffic Commission.  

 A. University Drive & Colony Road  

Mr. Ray Logan (resident) voiced concerns regarding speeding and truck traffic on 
University Drive and speeding concerns on Colony Road.  Mr. Logan requested that staff 
evaluate traffic calming for both roadways, specifically noting speed humps for Colony 
Road.   

Mr. Jim Phelps (resident) voiced concerns regarding speeding, truck traffic, and bus traffic 
on University Drive. Mr. Phelps noted that with the addition of the bike lanes on University 
Drive, there has been an increase in cyclist traffic which is a concern considering the 
observed speeding of motor vehicles.   

B. John Ross Parkway 

Ms. Arden Russo (Manager of Legacy @ Manchester Village Apartment Complex) voiced 
concerns regarding speeding and pedestrian travel on John Ross Parkway.  Ms. Russo 
noted that these concerns are heightened with pedestrian activity associated with 
Manchester Meadows Park occurring, especially regarding residents of her apartment 
complex attempting to cross from Longsight Lane to the park.  The grading of the hill limits 
visibility of oncoming traffic to see pedestrians in the roadway, as well as any drivers 
turning left from Longsight Lane. Ms. Russo explained that her concerns also consider 
potential increases in traffic related to the new Panthers training facility nearby off Mt. 
Gallant Road.   

4.  Old Business 



 2 | P a g e  
 

 A. India Hook Road @ Ebinport Road  

Staff member Chris Herrmann reviewed previous discussion regarding a request to 
extend the school safety zone on India Hook Road associated with Ebinport Elementary 
School.  Mr. Herrmann noted that city staff have been coordinating with SCDOT to finalize 
the plans. Member Steven Varnadore explained that SCDOT has provided the revision 
plans to city staff and work is anticipated to be completed in the coming weeks.  

 B. I-77 Catawba River Bridge Maintenance Project  

SCDOT staff member Tommy Feemster summarized previous discussion regarding 
rehab work planned for the I-77 Bridge over the Catawba River.  Captain Stinson noted 
that relative law enforcement agencies continue planning for enforcement and assistance 
with detouring traffic.  Specifically, Captain Stinson explained that Rock Hill Police 
Department is planning for extra enforcement near Riverwalk to regulate the potential cut 
through traffic from Cel-River Road.   

Member Clifton Goolsby then asked for an update on signal work at the intersection of 
Cel-River @ Eden Terrace which is being performed by SCDOT.  Mr. Feemster explained 
that the work is anticipated to be completed in the coming weeks prior to the May 6th start 
date of the rehab work on the bridge.  Mr. Goolsby asked for SCDOT to provide regular 
updates on this work as it will directly impact the re-routing of the MyRide Transit Service 
which is planned as part of the detouring of traffic. 

Captain Stinson then inquired as to whether any messaging will be provided prior to the 
interchange that will advise eastbound traffic on Cherry and Celanese to merge into the 
left lanes as early as possible.  Captain Stinson noted potential congestion issues that 
could arise, especially at the beginning of the project schedule as traffic begins to adjust 
to closures and detours.  Mr. Feemster noted that he would coordinate with project 
management to see if message boards can be placed in advance of Riverview Road.   

Traffic Commission requested that Mr. Feemster continue to provide updates.  

C. Marion Street  

Mr. Herrmann briefly summarized discussion related to Marion Street from the previous 
meeting.  Mr. Herrmann noted that Traffic Commission had requested staff to research 
whether any traffic calming measures had been implemented in this area in the past.  Mr. 
Herrmann then explained that in 2012 Traffic Commission had recommended stop bars 
be implemented at the intersection of Marion Street / Green Street / Whitner Street.  Mr. 
Herrmann then stated that city staff have provided the results of the traffic study to the 
requestor and no further follow up is needed at this time.  

D. Colony Road 

Mr. Herrmann briefly summarized discussion related to University Drive @ Colony Road 
from the previous meeting, noting that the request specifically mentioned concerns on 
Colony Road.  Mr. Herrmann explained that staff had completed a site assessment to 
evaluate existing conditions. Mr. Herrmann then provided an overview of the area; 
highlighting roadway termini, speed limits, signage, road width, grading and curvature.  
As a point of reference, Mr. Goolsby noted that the most recent traffic study completed in 
the area evaluated speeds and truck traffic on University Drive in 2019.  That study 
showed 85th percentile speeds were 7 MPH over the 35 MPH speed limit on University 
Drive.  Resulting action items from that study included targeted police enforcement and 
staff outreach to local businesses to advise routing trucks away from University Drive.  



 3 | P a g e  
 

Mr. Goolsby then explained that during the planning for the Pennies for Progress project 
that implemented bike lanes on University Drive, staff had recommended narrowing the 
travel lanes for motor vehicles in order to deter speeding.  Mr. Herrmann then noted that 
the recent resurfacing work on Cherry Road may have caused a potential increase in 
traffic raising further concerns from residents.   

In regards to Colony Road, Mr. Herrmann highlighted examples of overgrown vegetation 
that was impacting visibility and sight distance within the roadway, particularly at the 
southernmost curve.  Mr.  Herrmann also noted that a 25 MPH speed limit was posted on 
the southern intersection of Colony Road @ University Drive but there was no similar 
signage for the northern intersection.  Mr. Herrmann then stated that the staff 
recommendation would be to coordinate with Public Works to remove the vegetation.  Mr. 
Goolsby then recommended that Public Works also post the speed limit at the northern 
intersection of Colony Road @ University Drive.  Ms. Pender then explained the 
procedure for requesting traffic calming such as speed humps and asked that staff 
coordinate with the neighborhood association regarding this request.   

Traffic Commission then recommended targeted police enforcement on University Drive, 
as well as coordination of city staff to remove vegetation on Colony Road and posting 
proper signage.     

E. Northgate Lane @ Roundtree Circle 

Mr. Herrmann briefly summarized discussion related to Northgate Lane @ Roundtree 
Circle from the previous meeting, noting that the request specifically mentioned concerns 
at the intersection as well as visibility concerns during night time conditions on Roundtree 
Circle.  Mr. Herrmann explained that staff had completed a site assessment to evaluate 
existing conditions.  Mr. Herrmann then provided an overview of the area; highlighting 
roadway termini, speed limits, signage, road width, grading and curvature.  Mr. Herrmann 
noted that the eastern segment of Northgate Lane and Whimbrel Street are owned and 
maintained by the City of Rock Hill; both have a posted speed limit of 30 MPH. The 
western segment of Northgate Lane and Roundtree Circle are owned and maintained by 
SCDOT; both have an unposted speed limit of 35 MPH.  Mr. Goolsby then recommended 
that staff request that SCDOT consider posting a speed limit of 30 MPH on Northgate 
Lane and Roundtree Circle to improve driver expectations.   

Mr. Herrmann then summarized sight distance and visibility challenges that staff found at 
the intersection of Northgate Lane @ Roundtree Circle; highlighting grading issues as 
well as overgrown vegetation.  Mr. Herrmann then explained that staff are recommending 
the implementation of a 4-way stop at this location to improve the sight distance and 
visibility issues at this intersection.  Mr. Goolsby then stated the existing stop movements 
are located at Roundtree Circle and Whimbrel Street.  As a point of reference, Mr. 
Goolsby explained that the predominant movement at this intersection is a left-turn 
movement from Northgate Lane onto Whimbrel Street. The sight distance and visibility 
challenges associated with the grading of the hill and the overgrown vegetation are 
creating a safety concern from the staff perspective.  Mr. Walsh then added that while 
staff have not historically recommended a 4-way stop for traffic calming purposes, it can 
be utilized to address safety concerns in situations such as this.  Mr. Feemster agreed 
that a 4-way stop is recommended at this location due to the sight distance and visibility 
challenges. Ms. Pender then inquired as to how this change would be communicated to 
residents?  Mr. Weil responded that city staff will send out notice to everyone within ½ 
mile radius of the intersection.  Mr. Goolsby added that staff can coordinate with public 



 4 | P a g e  
 

works and SCDOT to implement signage to notify of changes to the traffic pattern.   

Mr. Herrmann then transitioned to review the second concern from the requestor 
regarding visibility on Roundtree Circle during night time conditions.  Mr. Walsh then 
explained that this is a low-volume residential street that is wide and short, and existing 
signage is already posted inside the curve advising of stop signs ahead.  Mr. Walsh added 
that street lighting is fairly uniform throughout the street and is typical of this type of 
roadway.  Mr. Herrmann stated that staff have no recommendation for this concern at this 
time.  

Traffic Commission then recommended that staff coordinate with Public Works and 
SCDOT to implement the 4-way stop at the intersection of Northgate Lane @ Roundtree 
Circle, as well as posting signage for a 30 MPH speed limit throughout the area.   

F. John Ross Parkway   

Mr. Herrmann briefly summarized discussion related to John Ross Parkway from the 
previous meeting, noting that the request specifically mentioned concerns regarding 
speeding and pedestrian travel.  Mr. Herrmann explained that staff had completed a traffic 
study, as well as a site assessment to evaluate existing conditions.  Mr. Herrmann then 
provided an overview of the area; highlighting roadway termini, speed limits, signage, 
road width, grading and curvature.   

Mr. Herrmann reviewed the results of the traffic study, noting that AADT levels were 
approximately 10,000 per day near Dave Lyle Blvd and 8,400 near Mt. Gallant Road.  The 
study also captured a 50th percentile speed over the posted 30 MPH speed limit and the 
85th percentile speed was 38 MPH.  Discussion then followed regarding the traffic 
volumes found with this study.  Mr. Goolsby and Mr. Walsh both noted that that roadway 
is functioning at or below capacity at this point, though widening the roadway should still 
be considered as future increases to traffic are anticipated with the development of the 
nearby Panthers site.  Mr. Walsh then explained that the speeds captured in the study 
would signify a need for targeted police enforcement, noting that the study showed an 
increase in average speed when compared to previous studies completed on this 
roadway.  

Mr. Walsh then reviewed the grading and curvature of the roadway and noted that sight 
distance and visibility is limited, especially for motor vehicle traffic in the westbound travel 
lane.  This added with the speed data reflected in the traffic study causes concern for 
drivers turning left from either Manchester Meadows Park or Longsight Lane, as well as 
concern for pedestrians attempting to cross from Longsight Lane to access the park.  Ms. 
Pender then inquired whether speed limits could be further restricted in this recreational 
area?  Mr. Goolsby advised that warning signs be implemented on John Ross Parkway 
approaching the intersection with Longsight Lane.  This would reflect an advisory speed 
of 25 MPH due to the curvature and grade rather than changing the regulatory speed 
limit.   

Mr. Walsh then noted that from an engineering perspective he would not recommend a 
pedestrian crossing from Longsight Lane to Manchester Meadows Park due to safety 
concerns.  Mr. Walsh recommended that staff consider a sidewalk to be constructed 
connecting Longsight Lane to Cinema Drive.  This connection would improve safety as 
pedestrians could then access the existing crosswalk located near Cinema Drive in order 
to access the park.  Mr. Herrmann then explained the site assessment completed by staff 
revealed visibility concerns for pedestrians in the existing crosswalk near Cinema Drive 



 5 | P a g e  
 

due to overgrown vegetation in the landscaped median.   

Traffic Commission recommended staff coordinate with PRT regarding the vegetation in 
the landscaped median, the implementation of signage for advisory speeds and 
pedestrian traffic, as well as targeted police enforcement on John Ross Parkway. 

 

5. New Business 

 A. MacArthur Street  

Mr. Herrmann reviewed a request provided by a resident related to speeding concerns 
on MacArthur Street.  Mr. Herrmann then provided an overview of the area; highlighting 
roadway termini, speed limits, signage, road width, grading and curvature.  Mr. Herrmann 
noted that staff completed a site assessment to evaluate existing conditions.  During the 
assessment staff noticed tire marks throughout the area that could be evidence of 
speeding or reckless driving.  Review of data from Rock Hill Police Department found that 
no calls have been received so far this year in this area regarding speeding or reckless 
driving.  Mr. Herrmann noted that traffic on this roadway could have been impacted by 
recent resurfacing work being completed on Cherry Road, Patton Street, and Eden 
Terrace.  Mr. Nealy suggested that Public Works evaluate the stop controlled 
intersections for potential implementation of striping and stop bars.   

Traffic Commission recommended that staff coordinate with Public Works regarding the 
evaluation for pavement markings, as well as continued monitoring of the area by Rock 
Hill Police Department.  

 B. White Street 

Mr. Herrmann reviewed a request provided by the Episcopal Church Daycare Facility 
related to safety concerns regarding the mid-block crosswalk at the intersection of White 
Street @ Caldwell Street.  Staff member Jason Vance noted that the requestor specifically 
asked that the crosswalk be repainted and staff consider the implementation of an in-
roadway pedestrian crossing sign.  Mr. Herrmann then provided an overview of the area; 
highlighting roadway termini, speed limits, signage, road width, grading and curvature.  
Mr. Herrmann noted that Traffic Commission had recently reviewed White Street for 
pedestrian safety concerns and had recommended that staff implement additional 
signage to warn motorists of increased pedestrian activity and construction.  Mr. Vance 
noted that this additional signage has been implemented and provided an update 
regarding the ongoing construction project on White Street, noting that work is currently 
being coordinated with the Thread Development.   

Member Ivan McCorkle recommended that this crosswalk on White Street and both 
crosswalks on Caldwell Street be re-painted in the interim, and staff can plan to replace 
thermo when construction has been completed next year and White Street is resurfaced.  
Mr. Walsh suggested that staff consider a ladder-style crosswalk at White Street @ 
Caldwell Street.  Mr.  Goolsby noted that mid-block crosswalks such as this one are often 
recommended for more high-visibility signage, thus the ladder-style crosswalk would be 
advised.   

In regards to the request for in-roadway signage for pedestrian crossing, Mr. Goolsby 
then noted that the existing signs in the downtown area are often damaged due to motor 
vehicle traffic.  Mr. McCorkle added that he would not recommend this signage be 
implemented while construction is on-going due to large truck and equipment traffic.   



 6 | P a g e  
 

Traffic Commission recommended that staff coordinate with Public Works to have the 
crosswalks re-painted to improve visibility.   

 C. Myrtle Drive 

Mr. Herrmann reviewed a petition provided to the Mayor’s Office regarding a request for 
speed bumps on Myrtle Drive to address speeding concerns.  Mr. Herrmann provided an 
overview of the area; highlighting roadway termini, speed limits, signage, road width, 
grading and curvature. Mr. Herrmann specifically explained that the speed limit is 
unposted at 35 MPH though there is signage advising speeds of 15 MPH around the 
curve.  As a point of reference, Mr. Herrmann noted that Traffic Commission last reviewed 
this location in 1999 when it was recommended that staff implement traffic diverters at 
the intersection of Myrtle Drive @ Charlotte Avenue.   

Mr. Goolsby then explained this is a roadway that is eligible for traffic calming under the 
existing guidelines, though not in the form of speed bumps as those are not utilized on 
roadways.  Mr. Goolsby suggested that Traffic Commission consider a traffic study and 
site assessment for this area to evaluate speeds and existing conditions.   

Traffic Commission recommended that staff complete a traffic study and site assessment 
and report back at a future meeting. 

 D. Saluda Street  

Mr. Herrmann noted that Captain Stinson had requested a traffic study on Saluda Street 
after requests were made for targeted police enforcement.  Mr. Herrmann provided an 
overview of the area; highlighting roadway termini, speed limits, signage, road width, 
grading and curvature.  Captain Stinson explained that Rock Hill Police Department had 
increased their presence and visibility in the area in recent weeks.  Mr. Herrmann noted 
that the traffic study is being scheduled but this must be coordinated with ongoing rehab 
work that is being completed on Saluda Street.  

Mr. Herrmann then explained that a request was provided to the Mayor regarding safety 
and speeding concerns on Saluda Road.  Mr. Herrmann noted that staff are working to 
correspond with the requestor to determine whether this concern is linked to Saluda 
Street or potentially a concern to be evaluated separately.   

Traffic Commission recommended that staff provide an update at a future meeting.  

7. Adjourn. 

There being no further business, Chair Pender made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Goolsby 
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 12:02 p.m.  


